
 

   
 

NAME ATTEND 

Michelle Hannan, Chair  
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair  
Eric Boucher  
Jim Annis  
Jonathan Duke, Town Manager  
Rockport AV Staff  
General Public  
  
  
  

 
 

June 27, 2022 – 6:30 p.m.  

Geoffrey C. Parker Room – Rockport Opera House 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 

 1 Select Board Agenda 
  June 27, 2022 

 
Rockport Select Board  

Monday, June 27, 2022, 6:30 p.m. 
Geoffrey C. Parker Room 

www.vimeo.com/rockportmaine 
 

AGENDA  
 

I. Call Meeting to Order 

II. Public Hearing 
a. New Liquor License for Malt, Wine & Spirits for Seafolk, LLC (d/b/a A Small 

Good) (Oliver Perkins) at 22 Central Street, Rockport, Maine 

III. Wastewater Commissioners 
a. FY 2023 Wastewater Budget Approval 

IV. Town Manager’s Report/Update 

V. Public Input on Non-agenda Items 

VI. Amendments to the Agenda 

VII. Consent Agenda 
a. Committee Resignation(s): 

➢ Ruben Brown – Board of Assessment Review 
➢ Ryan Gates – Conservation Commission 

VIII. Approve Meetiug Minutes 
a. Approve Meeting Minute(s): 

➢ May 16, 2022, Regular Meeting 
➢ June 6, 2022, Executive Session 
➢ June 15, 2022, Organizational Meeting   

IX. Action Items 
a. Act on Liquor License for Seafolk, LLC (d/b/a A Small Good) 
b. Act on Committee Application(s): 

➢ John Viehman – Planning Board Alternate 
➢ Jeffrey Leclair – Planning Board  
➢ Harold McWilliams – Conservation Commission  
➢ Amber Kennedy – CR Pathways Committee  
➢ Bill Freeman – Zoning Board of Appeals  
➢ Tricia Dixon – Rockport Parks and Beautification Alternate 

c. Act on Re-appointments to committee members for three-year terms  
d. Act on Re-appointment of committee members for the ZBA for two-year term to 

stagger terms  
e. Act on Re-appointment of Town Officials for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 
f. Act on Select Board Bylaws (distributed at Organizational Meeting) 
g. Act on Select Board Liaisons (distributed at the Organizational Meeting)   

http://www.vimeo.com/rockportmaine


 

 2 Select Board Agenda 
  June 27, 2022 

h. Act on Addendum to Personnel Policy to reflect Budget changes 
i. Act on Quitclaim Deed Map 022, Lot 007 

X. Discussion Items 
a. Discuss Special Election Dates 

XI. Select Board Liaison Reports 

XII. Adjourn 

Future Meetings, Office Closures, Etc. 
Thursday, June 30, 2022 – Town Office Closed at Noon for year-end 
Monday, July 4, 2022 – Town Office Closed – Independence Day 
Monday, July 11, 2022 – Select Board Meeting 
Monday, August 8, 2022 – Select Board Meeting 
Monday, September 5, 2022 – Town Offices Closed Labor Day 
Monday, September 12, 2022 – Select Board Meeting 
Monday, October 10, 2022 – Indigenous Peoples’ Day 
Tuesday, October 11, 2022 – Select Board Meeting 
 
 
 



 

   
 

Public Hearing 
a. New Liquor License for Malt, Wine & Spirits for Seafolk, LLC (d/b/a A Small Good) 

(Oliver Perkins) at 22 Central Street, Rockport, Maine 
 
Managers Comments: 
Open Public hearing to see if the Public has any comments/concerns regarding the New Liquor 
License. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 

   
 

Wastewater Commissioners 

a. Approve FY 2023 Wastewater Budget 

Managers Comments: 

At the time of the completing this packet, we still lack adequate reports from Maine Water to 
provide final numbers for the draft budget. So supporting information will be forthcoming in a 
separate package. 
 
Suggested Motion: 

I move the Board convene as Wastewater Commissioners..  

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair       
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair      
Eric Boucher      
Jim Annis      
      

Suggested Motion: 

I move the Board approve the Wastewater FY 2023 Budget.  

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair       
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair      
Eric Boucher      
Jim Annis      
      

 
Suggested Motion: 
I move the Board exit the Wastewater commissioners meeting back to regular meeting.  

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair       
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair      
Eric Boucher      
Jim Annis      
      



 

 
 
 

Town of Rockport, Maine 

Town Manager’s Office 
Town Office  
101 Main Street 
Rockport, Maine 04856 
Telephone:  207-236-0806 x3 
Fax:             207-230-0112 

Jonathan Duke, Town Manager 
Email: jduke@rockportmaine.gov 
 
Diane Hamilton, Executive Assistant and 
General Assistance Administrator 
Email:  dhamilton@rockportmaine.gov 

 
Town Manager’s Report & Update  

June 27, 2022 
 

Annual Town Meeting/Election Day: 
The annual rite of passage that is the Annual Town Meeting finally returned in its traditional, in-
person setting last week. We had 75 residents show up and participate to pass the annual budget 
and approve a number of articles which provide the basis for how the town government will 
operate for the next year.  A number of communities in Maine have altered how their 
municipalities handle the annual town meeting and instead move more of their decisions to be 
made through the ballot box. 75 people are not a great sum, but it was wonderful to see so many 
corners of our community together for the first time since the pandemic began.  
 
In the election on June 14th, 17.6% of Rockport’s registered voters (552 voters) turned out to cast 
a ballot for local and state candidates for office and a series of amendments to town ordinances. 
The voters elected Jim Annis to the Select Board, Bre Gutierrez to the School Board, Zachary 
Herrick to the Budget Committee, and a series of write-in candidates to the Library Committee 
and Budget Committee. We welcome all of these new officials and thank those whose terms are 
ending for their public service.  
 
Also, the Town received the resignation of John Strand from the Select Board on June 14th. John 
had hoped to remain in office but a new position out of the area made it difficult in fulfilling his 
duties. The Select Board will vote at their meeting on June 27th to set a date for a special election 
to fill this now vacant seat. A period for prospective candidates to circulate nomination papers 
will be followed by the ballot being set and absentee ballots being made available in advance of 
election day.  
 
Public Works: 
While the passage of the new municipal budget will kick off a long list of projects this summer 
and fall, our public works department will begin moving in overdrive this week. The department 
has largely moved to four 10-hour days but ensuring coverage Monday through Friday. This not 
only helps our employees because many of them live a fair distance away, but it allows them to 
take advantage of longer daylight hours in each workday.  
 
Among the projects underway in the next few weeks include: 
Russell Avenue: We are milling and paving a section of road between Beauchamp Street and 
Mechanic Street which has been trouble spot for many years. 
 

mailto:jduke@rockportmaine.gov
mailto:dhamilton@rockportmaine.gov


2 
 

Route 1: The collaboration between Maine DOT, the Town of Camden, and the Town of 
Rockport will construct a new sidewalk along Route 1 around the Camden/Rockport town line. 
In addition to the new sidewalk, there will be improvements to the intersection at Hannaford and 
the intersection near Subway. This project will be completed by Nitram, who is the same 
contractor we hired to complete the Route 1 sewer extension.  
 
Alexander Drive/Ledgewood Drive: Over the last few weeks, our public works crew has been 
ditching in this neighborhood and improving drainage in preparation for paving this year. 
Without ditching these roads, water would further damage the roadbed so while this can be an 
inconvenience it is a necessary part of maintaining a town road. Unfortunately, a 400-foot 
section of pavement has failed and will require removal prior to repaving. If we can get ahead of 
these issues in future years, we can avoid situations such as this.  
 
The Town will meet next week with FEMA to seek their assistance to speeding the permitting 
process for the replacement of the damaged large culverts on Robinson Drive, West Street 
Extension, and Chris’s Road.  
 
Harbor: 
The Harbor is very busy and busier than usual for June. As a result, parking is an issue earlier 
than ever and the Town will increase enforcement of 2-hour parking limits on the park side of 
the harbor. Longer term parking is available near the river and in Cramer Park. 
 
We had an outstanding turnout at the first event in the Summer Concert Series collaboration with 
the Opera House. We had approximately 350 attendees see David Mallett on a picture-perfect 
Sunday where we were also able to unveil the renewed Vulcan locomotive. Our next event will 
be held on July 31st with the Right Track.  
 
Our new deputy harbormasters, Rob, and Drew have been incredibly busy, and their skills have 
been a tremendous help to tackle a series of projects such as engine repair or carpentry work.  
 
The largest of the Town’s lime kilns will see an upgrade this week with a new roof and re-
staining of the framing of the roof.  
 
Lastly, in a further indication of how busy the harbor already is, the new dinghy docks are 
already sold out and our dockage income grows daily. These revenues, as you can tell this 
spring, are being put back into these facilities and ensuring Rockport Harbor remains a welcome 
port for visitors and a jewel our whole community can enjoy. 
 
Assessing: 
All real estate inspections have been completed for this year and most of the town’s personal 
property tax preparation has been completed.  Assessor Kerry Leichtman has set a goal to 
complete his earliest tax commitment yet in mid-July. Once the commitment has been 
completed, tax bills will be circulated shortly thereafter. 
 
I have signed an agreement with the Town of Camden to provide assessing services to the Town 
Rockport for FY 2023. With the departure of Assessor Kerry Leichtman to Camden, beginning 
July 1, Rockport was in need of finding a new agreement. The new contract is largely the mirror 



image of the prior agreement with Rockport contracting with the Town of Camden to provide 
their assessors to our community. The contract calls for the assessor and deputy assessor to be 
physically available in Rockport two and a half days a week, though they are available remotely 
via phone or email, full time.  
 
Committees: 
Though we have a number of applications for the Village Improvement Planning Task Force 
which will be acted upon by the Board on the 27th, it is expected there are still spots available for 
other residents. If interested, please reach out to Diane Hamilton or myself for a committee 
application.  
 
Finance: 
Our finance department is hard at work at implementing the new budget and closing out the last 
few weeks of the current fiscal year.   
 
Fire Department: 
The Fire Chief oversaw some floor maintenance and completion of the project to change over to 
LED lights in the public safety building. 
 
After a period of 10 days without a call, last week the fire department had four calls in a matter 
of a few hours.  
 
Planning and Community Development: 
The Town will have a new Planning and Community Development Director as of July 1, but it is 
a name that is not new to the Town of Rockport.  Orion Thomas, who has served in that role 
thanks to the Town’s contract with the Midcoast Council of Governments, was hired after a 
search begun earlier this spring. Orion has been working on a number of projects within the town 
over the last year ranging from seeking grant funding for public works and wastewater projects 
to assisting our boards through challenging waters to staffing committees charged with 
improving our ordinances and economic future.  While this is a wide-ranging area of 
responsibility, Rockport has been a town in need of someone in this role on a full-time basis for 
many years and hopefully this is the beginning of Rockport being able to be more active in 
receiving grant funding and creating a positive environment for all of us who live and work here. 
 
Library: 
A pair of projects are underway around the library, both due to generous donations. The boulder 
slope on the library’s eastern side will soon be transformed into a stepped garden space that 
transitions into the stream bed. This project should last several months as the meticulous work 
must take place without dramatically disturbing the stream and working through significant 
elevation differences with the library first floor.  
 
In Memorial Park, a new irrigation system is being planned and should be installed 
simultaneously as the stream buffer improvements. Both projects are being constructed and 
installed by Farley Inc. and are Town projects funded by donors.  
 
  
 
 



4 
 

Opera House: 
We have some personnel upheaval in the Opera House department with the departure of video 
technician Bruce Hilsmeyer last week. We wish Bruce well as he moves closer to family in New 
Hampshire.  
 
Technical Services technician Jake Hickey has moved on to a new position and we are in need of 
a new individual to handle lighting and sound for events at the Opera House.  
 
Lastly, custodian and event attendant Richard Dinsmore will be retired on June 30th.  Richard 
will be missed in his care for the Opera House building over many years. Richard’s position will 
be combined into a new full-time position which will be posted for hire next week.  
 
Many thanks to Kari Luehman for her efforts in organizing the first edition of the Summer 
Concert Series at the harbor.  
 
Recreation Committee: 
Five Town Little League softball and baseball fields are filling up fast for the summer. If you 
want to schedule the use of a field, email rockportrec@rockportmaine.gov.  
 
Donations: 
Many thanks to Maine Media Workshops and Mid-Coast Solid Waste Corporations for making 
payments in lieu of taxes to cover the cost of town services they require despite their non-profit 
status. Rockport has a long list of non-profit organizations who call our town their home and 
their presence makes our community a better place. It is incredibly helpful for our taxpayers that 
we have organizations in Rockport who respect the value of the services the town government 
provides and wish to pay their fair share. 
 
Safety: 
We had another successful SHAPE renewal from the Department of Labor. Due to our efforts 
the Town of Rockport have again received the highest honors for promoting and consistently 
improving conditions for safety and health of Employees. We received a tag to attach to our 
existing SHAPE plaque and have been extended to August of 2024. If the Department of Labor 
does not find any violations at our next inspection, they will extend our next renewal to 3 years 
instead of 2.   
 
Town Clerk: 
Next week the Town will welcome Wendy Charland as the new Assistant Town Clerk, replacing 
Wyatt Summers who left us in April. Wendy grew up in Rockport and attended Camden 
Rockport High School before returning home to raise her family. We look forward to having 
Wendy join our team and feel free to say “hello!” when you stop by to re-register your car or cast 
your absentee ballot. 
 
Town Office: 
We have completed the installation of heat pumps inside the Town Office building to replace the 
old, failing air conditioning system. Many thanks to David Leighton for his hard work in 
installing and planning the best possible system for this building. Our expectation is that these 
heat pumps will solely be able to heat and cool the Town Office building at least nine months of 

mailto:rockportrec@rockportmaine.gov


the year and only require the oil furnace when temperatures dip in the depths of winter. With the 
use of our solar panels, the Town should realize significant savings in our heat costs this winter. 
 
As a reminder, masks are optional in all town buildings, so while the impacts of COVID have 
changed dramatically over the last two years, we should all do our part to help keep each other 
healthy and safe. 
 
 

 
 



 

   
 

Consent Agenda 
a. Committee Resignation(s): 

➢ Ruben Brown – Board of Assessment Review 
➢ Ryan Gates – Conservation Commission 

 
 
Managers Comments: 
After many years of service to the Board of Assessment Review, Ruben has elected to step aside. 
Ryan Gates will be removed from the Conservation Commission due to lack of attendance, per 
language in their bylaws. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
I move the Board Approve the Consent Agenda as presented (or amended)  

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair       
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair      
Eric Boucher      
Jim Annis   X   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



From: Ruben S. Brown <rubensbrown914@gmail.com>  
Sent: Thursday, May 19, 2022 10:55 AM 
To: Kerry Leichtman <kleichtman@rockportmaine.gov> 
Cc: Diane Hamilton <dhamilton@rockportmaine.gov>; Thomas Laurent <tmlaurent@gmail.com> 
Subject: Resignation from Board of Assessment Review 
 
It has been my privilege to assist with the Board of Assessment Review for several years. 
 
 I did attend yesterday’s engaging Training Workshop in Augusta with four other Board members and an 
alternate. My new recruit Mark Halley attended and indeed appears engaged. I realize that Mark serves 
in other volunteer roles for the Town. He will be a good addition to this Board. 
 
This workshop was surely educational and more concise than the last Training Workshop. This 
experience and the likely wave of appeals after the April 1, 2022 assessment helped confirm my 
judgement that at this stage in my life (80) my volunteer opportunities need to focus on less complex 
issues and procedures. 
 
Therefore, I submit my resignation from the Board. 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to serve. 
 
Ruben  
Ruben S. Brown 
 

mailto:rubensbrown914@gmail.com
mailto:kleichtman@rockportmaine.gov
mailto:dhamilton@rockportmaine.gov
mailto:tmlaurent@gmail.com


 

   
 

 
 
Approve Meeting Minutes 
 
b. Approve Meeting Minute(s): 

 
May 16, 2022 Meeting Minutes 
 
Suggested Motion: 
I move the board approve the minutes from May 16, 2022, Meeting 
 

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair       
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair      
Eric Boucher      
Jim Annis   X   

 

June 6, 2022, Executive Session Minutes 
Suggested Motion: 
I move the board approve the minutes from June 6, 2022, Executive Session Meeting 
 

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair       
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair      
Eric Boucher      
Jim Annis   X   

 

June 15, 2022, Organizational Meeting   
Suggested Motion: 
I move the board approve the minutes from June 15, 2022, Organizational Meeting 

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair       
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair      
Eric Boucher      
Jim Annis      

 

 























   
 

Select Board Executive Session Minutes 
June 6, 2022 – 5:30 p.m. via ZOOM 

NAME ATTEND 

Michelle Hannan, Chair X 
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair X 
Denise Munger X 
Eric Boucher X 
John Strand  
Jonathan Duke, Town Manager X 

 
Chair Hannan call meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Motion to enter executive session to discuss contracts connected with the use of real or 
personal property pursuant to 1 M.R.S. Section 405(6)(C)  
 

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair    X   
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair    X  
Denise Munger X   X  
Eric Boucher  X  X  
John Strand      

 
Motion to exit executive session and return to regular session. 
 

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair    X   
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair    X  
Denise Munger X   X  
Eric Boucher  X  X  
John Strand      

Adjourn 
I move the Board adjourn the meeting. 
 

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair    X   
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair    X  
Denise Munger X   X  
Eric Boucher X   X  
John Strand      

 















 

   
 

 

 

Action Item 

a. Act on Liquor License for Seafolk, LLC (d/b/a A Small Good): 
 

Manager’s Comments: Action Item 
 
Seafolk is pursuing a liquor license to augment the offerings available for their customers. A 
representative will be present for the public hearing and this vote. 

 
 
Suggested Motion: 
I move the Board approve the Liquor License for Seafolk, LLC (d/b/a A Small Good) 
 
 

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair       
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair      
Eric Boucher      
Jim Annis      
      

 

Additional Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

























 

   
 

Action Item 

b. Act on Committee Application(s): 
 

Manager’s Comments: Action Item 
John Viehman –  
Jeffrey Leclair –  
Harold McWilliams will be here to answer any questions you may have. 
Amber Kennedy will not be able to attend the meeting. 
Bill Freeman will be here to answer any questions you may have. 
Tricia Dixon will be here to answer any questions you may have.  
(Recommendation from Doug attached) 
 
➢ John Viehman – Planning Board Alternate – Term Ending 2025 
➢ Jeffrey Leclair – Planning Board – Term Ending 2025 
➢ Harold McWilliams – Conservation Commission – Term Ending June 2025 
➢ Amber Kennedy – CR Pathways Committee  - Term Ending June 2025 
➢ Bill Freeman – Zoning Board of Appeals – Term Ending June 2025 
➢ Tricia Dixon – Rockport Parks and Beautification Alternate – Term Ending June 2025 

 
Suggested Motion: (separate all motions???) 
 
I move the Board approve the committee applications as presented (or amended) 
 

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair       
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair      
Eric Boucher      
Jim Annis      

 
Additional Comments: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 



APPLICATION FOR COMMITTEE SERVICE 
Town of Rockport $ 101 Main Street $ Rockport, ME 04856

Name: _______________________________________ 

Home Address:______________________Work Address:_________________________ 
Mailing Address (if different):  ______________________________________________ 
Phone Number:  (Home) _____________________ (Work)_______________________ 

E-mail Address: __________________________________________________________

Committee you wish to serve on:_____________________________________________ 

Why do you want to serve on this committee? 

Do you have any background that would be helpful to this committee? 

Land Use philosophy: (if applicable) 



  

 
APPLICATION FOR COMMITTEE SERVICE – continued 

 
 
Are there objectives you wish to see accomplished? 
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
Are you interested in serving on other committees? 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  
 
Interview comments: 
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
 
Appointment Date:  _________________________________________________ 
 
 



APPLICATION FOR COMMITTEE SERVICE
Town of Rockport $$ 101 Main Street $$ Rockport, ME 04856

Name: _______________________________________

Home Address:______________________Work Address:_________________________
Mailing Address (if different):  ______________________________________________ 
Phone Number:  (Home) _____________________ (Work)_______________________

E-mail Address: __________________________________________________________

Committee you wish to serve on:_____________________________________________

Why do you want to serve on this committee? 

Do you have any background that would be helpful to this committee?

Land Use philosophy: (if applicable) 

Jeffrey Leclair

158 Union Street

774 232 2694

jleclair@gmail.com

Planning Board

First reason: I am interested in contributing to the town’s future through 
thoughtful review of development projects.
Second: My interest in planning began as a kid with an insatiable curiosity of 
maps, buildings, and the built environment. It continued through college and 
graduate school where I took courses in design, planning, land use law, and 
sociology. Planning, for me, uses the left and right hemispheres of the brain 
and can be a very fun experience, even as it takes years to witness the plan 
take shape.

Where my experience may be most useful is in the field of building, planning, 
and design. I have an undergraduate degree in architectural history and a 
graduate degree in architecture. I have designed historic preservation projects, 
renovations, and new buildings for college campuses, residential buildings 
from single family to apartment towers, industrial, retail, recreational 
buildings, etc. As a Maine licensed architect I confront zoning and code 
matters on a daily basis. I grew up in Belfast with a good sense of the local 
landscape and people.

In regard to planning, broadly, I believe that density in town centers is 
important. Walkability, bikeability, intergenerational activities, access 
to recreation and other basic needs, connections to wild landscapes, 
transportation alternatives to driving, and mixed-use zoning are all features 
of healthy planned developments and towns. I also believe that stewardship 
of the environment is an essential ethos that fortunately most Mainers 
understand.

207 230 0034

Phi, 446 West Street



 

APPLICATION FOR COMMITTEE SERVICE – continued

Are there objectives you wish to see accomplished?

Are you interested in serving on other committees?

Interview comments:

Appointment Date: _________________________________________________

I largely agree with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan and would use that as the 
main set of recommendations. As a member of the board, my objectives will be 
to be steadfast and friendly, and considerate of the projects that come before 
us, to serve the best interests of the applicants and the Town.

Although planning is my primary interest, I may also be interested in the 
Zoning Board of Appeals, and committees that review other issues related to 
the environment, human-built or not.



















 

   
 

Action Item 

c. Act on Re-appointments to Committees for three-year terms 
 
 
Manager’s Comments: Action item 
Included in your packet is a list of all board and committee members who have agreed to serve 
another term on their respective boards and committees.  

The terms will be for three years, ending June 30, 2025.   

Thank you, letters will be sent to the committee members, who are not renewing their terms. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
I move the Board reappoint all the board and committee members as presented for three-year 
terms ending June 30, 2025. 

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair       
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair      
Eric Boucher      
Jim Annis      

 
Additional Comments: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Committee Renewals
2022-2025

NAME COMMITTEE YES NO STAFF/SELECT BOARD/LIAISION
Lynda Clancy CR Pathways X Mike Young/Mark Kelley
Robert Lawrence Conservation Commission X Abbie Leonard/Mark Kelley
Fred Ribeck Conservation Commission X Abbie Leonard/Mark Kelley
Scott Warren Harbor Committee X Abbie Leonard/Eric Boucher
Ralph "Doc" Wallace Harbor Committee X Abbie Leonard/Eric Boucher
Nancy Albertson Harbor Committee X Abbie Leonard/Eric Boucher
Richard Remsen Ordinance Review Committee X Orion Thomas/Denise Munger
Taylor Allen Ordinance Review Committee X Orion Thomas/Denise Munger
Robert Hall Ordinance Review Committee X Orion Thomas/Denise Munger
Brian Fitzpatrick Recreation Committee X Jason Peasley/Eric Boucher
Barrett Brown Recreation Committee X Jason Peasley/Eric Boucher
Mike Archer Recreation Committee X Jason Peasley/Eric Boucher
Jennifer Roper Recreation Committee X Jason Peasley/Eric Boucher
Haunani Wallace Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee X Mike Young/Mark Kelley and Denise Munger
Sue Kauck Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee X Mike Young/Mark Kelley and Denise Munger
Paula Coyne Rockport Parks and Beautification Committee X Mike Young/Mark Kelley and Denise Munger
Kimberlee Graffam ZBA (2 Year) X Orion Thomas/Denise Munger
Terri Mackenzie ZBA X Orion Thomas/Denise Munger
W. Kevin Olehnik ZBA X Orion Thomas/Denise Munger
Geoff Parker ZBA (2 Year) X Orion Thomas/Denise Munger



 

   
 

Action Item 

d. Act on Re-appointments of committee members for the ZBA for two-year term to stagger 
terms. 
 
 
Manager’s Comments: Action item 
Included in your packet is a list of ZBA Members who have agreed to serve another term on their 
respective boards and committees.  

The terms will be for two years, ending June 30, 2024, to stagger terms. 

 
Suggested Motion: 
I move the Board reappoint two ZBA members as presented for two-year terms ending June 
30, 2024. 

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair       
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair      
Eric Boucher      
Jim Annis      

 
Additional Comments: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

   
 

Action Item 
e.    Act on Re-appointment of Town Officials for Fiscal Year 2022-2023  

 
Manager’s Comments: Action item 

Included in your packet is a list of all Rockport Town Officials for re-appointment for the 2022-
2023 Fiscal Year. These are Annual appointments as required by the Town of Rockport Charter, 
Section IV, Part A, Section 1.   
 
Suggested Motion: 
I move the Board re-appoint the Town Officials as presented for the fiscal year beginning July 
1, 2022, ending June 30, 2023.   
 

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair       
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair      
Eric Boucher      
Jim Annis      

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

A
B

C
N

AM
E

TI
TL

E
TE

R
M

/E
X

PI
R

AT
IO

N

JO
N

AT
H

AN
 D

U
K

E
TO

W
N

 M
AN

AG
ER

, D
EP

U
TY

 T
AX

 C
O

LL
EC

TO
R

, 
TR

EA
SU

R
E

R
AN

N
U

A
L

SE
X

TO
N

, R
O

AD
 C

O
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
ER

AN
N

U
A

L

LI
N

D
A 

M
. G

R
EE

N
LA

W
TO

W
N

 C
LE

R
K,

 T
AX

 C
O

LL
EC

TO
R

, D
EP

U
TY

 
TR

EA
SU

R
E

R
, A

SS
IS

TA
N

T 
G

A 
AD

M
IN

IS
TR

AT
O

R
AN

N
U

A
L

M
EG

AN
 B

R
AC

KE
TT

FI
N

AN
C

E
 D

IR
EC

TO
R

AN
N

U
A

L

KE
R

R
Y 

LE
IC

H
TM

AN
AS

SE
SS

O
R

AN
N

U
A

L

O
R

IO
N

 T
H

O
M

AS
D

IR
EC

TO
R

 O
F 

PL
AN

N
IN

G
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y 

 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

AN
N

U
A

L

SC
O

TT
 E

. B
IC

KF
O

R
D

C
O

D
E 

EN
FO

R
C

E
M

EN
T 

O
FF

IC
ER

 A
N

D
 L

O
C

AL
 

PL
U

M
BI

N
G

 IN
SP

EC
TO

R
 

AN
N

U
A

L

M
IC

H
AE

L 
YO

U
N

G
PU

BL
IC

 W
O

R
KS

 D
IR

EC
TO

R
AN

N
U

A
L

R
AN

D
Y 

G
AG

N
E

C
H

IE
F 

O
F 

PO
LI

C
E

AN
N

U
A

L

JA
SO

N
 P

EA
SL

EY
FI

R
E 

C
H

IE
F

AN
N

U
A

L

D
IA

N
E 

H
AM

IL
TO

N
G

EN
ER

AL
 A

SS
IS

TA
N

C
E

 A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

AT
O

R
AN

N
U

A
L

C
AI

TL
IN

 T
H

O
M

PS
O

N
E-

91
1 

C
O

O
R

D
IN

A
TO

R
AN

N
U

A
L

BE
N

JA
M

IN
 B

LA
C

KM
O

N
LI

BR
AR

Y 
D

IR
EC

TO
R

AN
N

U
A

L

AB
BI

E 
LE

O
N

AR
D

H
AR

BO
R

M
AS

TE
R

AN
N

U
A

L

BE
N

JA
M

IN
 P

R
AT

T
AS

SI
ST

AN
T 

SE
X

TO
N

AN
N

U
A

L

JA
SO

N
 P

EA
SL

EY
D

IR
EC

TO
R

 O
F 

EM
ER

G
EN

C
Y 

M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

AG
EN

C
Y

AN
N

U
A

L



32 33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48

A
B

C

PH
IL

IP
 S

AU
C

IE
R

/B
ER

N
S

TE
IN

 
SH

U
R

TO
W

N
 A

TT
O

R
N

E
Y

AN
N

U
A

L

SM
IT

H
 &

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

S
AU

D
IT

O
R

AN
N

U
A

L

P
O

LI
C

E
D

E
P

A
R

TM
E

N
T

N
AM

E
TI

TL
E

TE
R

M
/E

X
PI

R
AT

IO
N

JA
M

ES
 C

. M
O

O
R

E
SE

R
G

EA
N

T/
C

O
N

ST
AB

LE
AN

N
U

A
L

TR
AV

IS
 W

. F
O

R
D

PA
TR

O
LM

AN
/C

O
N

ST
AB

LE
AN

N
U

A
L

JA
C

O
B 

PO
W

ER
S

PA
TR

O
LM

AN
/C

O
N

ST
AB

LE
AN

N
U

A
L

AN
TO

N
IO

 D
EL

 V
EC

C
H

IO
PA

TR
O

LM
AN

/C
O

N
ST

AB
LE

AN
N

U
A

L
C

EL
JE

TA
 B

IX
H

AK
U

PA
TR

O
LM

AN
/C

O
N

ST
AB

LE
AN

N
U

A
L

AN
TO

N
IO

 D
EL

 V
EC

C
H

IO
AN

IM
AL

 C
O

N
TR

O
L 

O
FF

IC
ER

AN
N

U
A

L



 

   
 

Action Item 
f.    Act on Select Board Bylaws (distributed at the Organizational Meeting) 

 
Manager’s Comments: Action item 
The Select Board Bylaws were distributed at the Organizational Meeting for review.   

 

Suggested Motion: 
I move the Board approve the Select Board Bylaws as presented (or amended after any 
discussion/changes). 
 

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair       
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair      
Eric Boucher      
Jim Annis      

 
 
Additional Comments: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 



1  

 
 

Bylaws of the Select Board of the  
Town of Rockport, Maine 

 
Section 1. Purpose and Scope 
The purpose of these Bylaws is to establish reasonable rules of procedure for Board meetings 
and to promote the fair, orderly and efficient conduct of the Board’s proceedings and affairs. 
These Bylaws shall govern the Board’s practices and procedures except as otherwise provided 
by law and/or Charter of the Town of Rockport and shall be liberally construed so as to 
accomplish their purpose. 

Section 2. Officers; Duties 
Officers of the Board shall consist of a Chair and Vice Chair to be chosen annually at an 
organizational meeting of the Board to be held within twenty-four (24) hours of the town 
election in June. The Chair shall preside at all Board meetings and shall have authority to rule 
on questions of evidence and procedure, to maintain order and determine the course of 
proceedings. The Chair also shall, together with the Town Manager, set the agenda for each 
meeting. In the absence of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall preside and shall have the same 
authority as the Chair. The Town Manager shall maintain a permanent record of all Board 
meetings and all correspondence of the Board, which shall be a public record except as 
otherwise provided by law. 

Section 3. Meetings 
Regular meetings of the Board shall be held on the second (2nd) Monday (or the day following 
if Monday is a holiday) of each month (except June when the meeting shall be the fourth (4th) 
Monday) or as otherwise necessary or required by law. Special meetings may be called at the 
discretion of the Chair or upon the request of a majority (three) of the Board, provided, however, 
that notice thereof shall be given to each member and to representatives of the press at least 
forty-eight (48) hours in advance and that no business may be conducted other than as specified 
in said notice. Workshops may be called at the discretion of the Chair or upon the request of a 
majority (three) of the Board, and shall include informal discussion of the matter at hand, but will 
not include formal action. 



2  

Notice of all Board meetings shall be given as required by law, and all such meetings shall be 
open to the public except as otherwise provided by law. 

No business may be conducted by the Board except at a duly called and noticed meeting at which 
a quorum consisting of a majority of the Board is present. The order of business at regular 
meetings shall be determined by the Board.  

Section 4. Hearings 
Public hearings of the Board shall be called as required by law or on such other occasions, as a 
majority (three) of the Board may deem appropriate. Notice of all such hearings shall be given as 
required by law and shall include the date, time and place of the hearing and a general 
description of the subject matter. 

The Chair shall convene all hearings by describing the purpose of the hearing and the general 
procedures to be followed. The Board may receive any oral or documentary evidence but shall 
exclude irrelevant, immaterial or unduly repetitious evidence, provided, however, that formal 
rules of evidence shall not apply. Every party shall have the right to present its case in the order 
determined by the Chair and without interruption, provided, however, that the Chair may 
impose such reasonable time limits as may be necessary to ensure that all parties have an 
adequate opportunity to be heard. In any adjudicatory proceeding, including proceedings on 
licenses, permits or other approvals, every party shall also have the right to submit rebuttal 
evidence and to conduct cross examination of any other party through the Chair, provided 
however, that the Chair may impose such other reasonable limitations as may be necessary to 
prevent an abuse of process. 

Section 5. Participation and Voting 
Any action of the Board shall require the affirmative vote of a majority (three) of its 
membership unless otherwise provided by law. 

No member may participate or vote in any matter in which the member has a conflict of interest 
or other disqualification as defined by law. Any question of whether a member has such a 
conflict of interest or other disqualification shall be decided by majority vote of the remaining 
members. 
 

Section 6. Decisions 
 
All decisions of the Board shall be made within the time limits, if any, established by law. All 
final decisions the date, time and place of the meeting, the members of the body present or 
absent, and all motions, seconds and votes taken by individual members if there is a roll 
call, shall become a part of the Board’s permanent record as its minutes. All such decisions, 
together with any tape recording or transcript of testimony and deliberations and any documents 
and exhibits offered to the Board, shall constitute the record of the proceedings and shall be a 
public record, except as otherwise provided by law. 
 



3  

Notice of any decision, if required, shall be given as prescribed by law. 

Section 7. Performance Reviews of Town Manager 
The Select Board shall hold a goal setting session no later than August 31st to establish the goals 
for the coming year for the Town Manager. Additionally, the Select Board shall conduct a 
formal, written review of the Town Manager’s performance which shall be completed annually 
no later than May 31st of each year. 

Section 8. Conflict with Laws 
Any conflict or inconsistency between these Bylaws and any applicable law or the Town 
Charter shall be resolved in favor of the law and/or the Charter of the Town of Rockport. 

Section 9.  Parliamentary Authority 
The rules contained in the current edition of “Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised” shall 
govern the Select Board in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not 
inconsistent with these Bylaws, applicable state and federal statutes, the Charter of the Town 
of Rockport, and any special rules of order the Select Board may adopt. 

Section 10. Waivers; Amendments 
These Bylaws, or any provision thereof, may be waived on any occasion by majority vote of 
the Board unless otherwise provided by law. These Bylaws may be amended at any time in 
writing by majority (three) vote of the Board after notice and public hearing on the proposed 
amendment. 
 
Adopted by the Board on January 22, 2001  
Revised by the Select Board on August 13, 2007  
Revised by the Select Board on June 27, 2011  
Revised by the Select Board on June 25, 2012 

Revised by the Select Board on December 10, 2012 
Revised by the Select Board on October 15, 2013  

Revised by the Select Board on June 23, 2014  

Revised by the Select Board on August 22, 2016 

Revised by the Select Board on October 23, 2018 

Approved by the Select Board on June 12, 2019 

Approved by the Select Board on September 9, 2019 

Approved by the Select Board on September 8, 2020 

Approved by the Select Board on June 28, 2021 

Approved by the Select Board on August 9, 2021 



 

   
 

Action Item 
g.    Discuss and Act on Select Board Liaisons (distributed at the Organizational Meeting)  

 
Manager’s Comments: Action item 
Some may be temporary assignments till another SB members is elected.  
 
 
 
Suggested Motion: 
I move the Board approve the Select Board Liaisons as discussed and amended.  

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair       
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair      
Eric Boucher      
Jim Annis      

 
 
Additional Comments: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



20
22

-2
02

3 
Se

le
ct

 B
oa

rd
/S

ta
ff 

L
ia

is
on

 
 

 

  F
oo

tn
ot

es
: 

   
 1

. 5
01

(c
)3

 o
rg

an
iz

at
io

n;
 1

 m
em

be
r o

f S
el

ec
t B

oa
rd

 is
 a

ut
om

at
ic

al
ly

 a
 v

ot
in

g 
m

em
be

r 
   

 2
. M

C
SW

C
 B

oa
rd

 o
f D

ire
ct

or
s a

re
 e

le
ct

ed
 to

 3
-y

ea
r t

er
m

s, 
B

oa
rd

 c
om

po
se

d 
of

 4
 to

w
ns

 p
er

 in
te

rlo
ca

l a
gr

ee
m

en
t 

   
 3.

 E
M

S 
R

ev
ie

w
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
ve

rs
ig

ht
 c

om
m

itt
ee

 is
 a

 4
-to

w
n 

co
op

er
at

iv
e 

ve
nt

ur
e 

 
   

 4.
 P

la
nn

in
g 

B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 Z

on
in

g 
B

oa
rd

 o
f A

pp
ea

ls 
ar

e 
qu

as
i-j

ud
ic

ia
l e

nt
iti

es
 

 
   

 5.
 V

ot
in

g 
m

em
be

r 
   

  

B
O

A
R

D
/C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 

  

20
22

-2
02

3 
 

St
af

f L
ia

is
on

 
 

 
ST

A
N

D
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
S:

 
 

 

B
oa

rd
 o

f A
ss

es
sm

en
t R

ev
ie

w
 

Jo
hn

 S
tra

nd
 

K
er

ry
 L

ei
ch

tm
an

 

B
ud

ge
t C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Jo

hn
 S

tra
nd

 
M

eg
an

 B
ra

ck
et

t 
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 

M
ar

k 
K

el
le

y 
A

bb
ie

 L
eo

na
rd

 

Ec
on

om
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 

D
en

is
e 

M
un

ge
r 

O
rio

n 
Th

om
as

 

H
ar

bo
r C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Er

ic
 B

ou
ch

er
 

A
bb

ie
 L

eo
na

rd
 

Li
br

ar
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

D
en

is
e 

M
un

ge
r 

B
en

 B
la

ck
m

on
 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 R

ev
ie

w
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 
D

en
is

e 
M

un
ge

r 
O

rio
n 

Th
om

as
 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 B
oa

rd
 4  

Jo
hn

 S
tra

nd
 

O
rio

n 
Th

om
as

 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

Er
ic

 B
ou

ch
er

 
Ja

so
n 

Pe
as

le
y 

R
oc

kp
or

t P
ar

ks
 a

nd
 B

ea
ut

ifi
ca

tio
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

M
ar

k 
K

el
le

y 
an

d 
D

en
is

e 
M

un
ge

r 
M

ik
e 

Y
ou

ng
 

Zo
ni

ng
 B

oa
rd

 o
f A

pp
ea

ls
 4  

D
en

is
e 

M
un

ge
r 

     
 

O
rio

n 
Th

om
as

 

T
A

SK
 F

O
R

C
E

S/
T

E
M

PO
R

A
R

Y
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
S:

 
 

 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 P

la
n 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

M
ic

he
lle

 H
an

na
n5  

O
rio

n 
Th

om
as

 

R
ES

 R
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t T

as
k 

Fo
rc

e 
Er

ic
 B

ou
ch

er
 

O
rio

n 
Th

om
as

 

V
ill

ag
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
nn

in
g 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 

N
on

e 
O

rio
n 

Th
om

as
 

W
es

t R
oc

kp
or

t F
ire

 S
ta

tio
n 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
Ta

sk
 F

or
ce

 
M

ar
k 

K
el

le
y 

an
d 

M
ic

he
lle

 H
an

na
n 

Ja
so

n 
Pe

as
le

y 

M
IS

C
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
S:

 
 

 

C
am

de
n-

R
oc

kp
or

t P
at

hw
ay

s C
om

m
itt

ee
 

M
ar

k 
K

el
le

y 
M

ik
e 

Y
ou

ng
 

EM
S 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 A
m

bu
la

nc
e 

R
ev

ie
w

 C
om

m
itt

ee
3  

M
ar

k 
K

el
le

y5  a
nd

 Jo
hn

 S
tra

nd
5  

Ja
so

n 
Pe

as
le

y 

Le
ga

cy
 R

oc
kp

or
t1  

D
en

is
e 

M
un

ge
r 

M
eg

an
 B

ra
ck

et
t 

M
id

-C
oa

st
 In

te
rn

et
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
D

en
is

e 
M

un
ge

r5  
Jo

n 
D

uk
e 

M
C

O
G

 G
en

er
al

 A
ss

em
bl

y 
an

d 
B

oa
rd

 o
f D

ire
ct

or
s 

D
en

is
e 

M
un

ge
r5  

O
rio

n 
Th

om
as

 

M
C

SW
C

 B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s2  
D

eb
ra

 H
al

l5  a
nd

 E
ric

 B
ou

ch
er

5  
Jo

n 
D

uk
e 

(E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

) 

Pa
rk

in
g 

Ta
sk

 F
or

ce
 

Er
ic

 B
ou

ch
er

 
O

rio
n 

Th
om

as
 

  



 

   
 

 

Action Item 
h.    Act on Addendum to Personnel Policy to reflect Budget changes 

 
Manager’s Comments: Action item 
The approved budget requires changes to the Personnel Policy to reflect the budget approved at 
the annual town meeting. The changes include moving the Town funded portion of health 
insurance premiums to at least 90% and establishes a Flexible Spending Account (FSA) which 
employees can use pay for items of a medical nature. I worked with the attorneys at Bernstein 
Shur to ensure these amendments are compliant with IRS rules, though they do appear rather 
confusing in written form. In any event, this proposed addendum will accomplish all the FY ’23 
budget proposed to do. 
 
 
Suggested Motion: 
I move the Board approve the Personnel Policy as presented (or amended)  
  

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair       
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair      
Eric Boucher      
Jim Annis      

 
 
Additional Comments: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Personnel Policy Addendum A 
Health Insurance Changes 

 
The changes listed below are a result of Town Meeting June 15th, 2022.  
 
The latest update to the Personnel Policy was done on December 3rd, 2018 and this Addendum will 
reference that document. These changes are related to Health Insurance and the additional of a Flexible 
Spending Account, hereafter referred to as FSA.  
 
Changes related to Article 19, Item E 
 
19.E.1 – will remain unchanged 
19.E.2 & 3 – will be removed and replaced with the following: 
 “The Town pays ninety percent (90%) of the individual and dependent cost of participation in the 

group health insurance plan for eligible employees hired on or after September 13, 2005.” 
19.E.4 – will be changed in number sequence only to 19.E.3 
19.E.5 – will be changed in number sequence only to 19.E.4 
19.E.6 – will be changed in number sequence only to 19.E.5 
19.E.7 – will be changed in number sequence only to 19.E.6 
19.E.8 – will be changed in number sequence only to 19.E.7 
 

New Section related to Article 19, Item L 

Full-time benefit eligible employees will be eligible to participate in a Flexible Spending Account (FSA), 
this benefit will be available to these employees whether they are participating members in the group 
health insurance program or not.  

The first year of this program will run from July 1st, 2022, to June 30th, 2023, in which each full-time 
benefit eligible employee will be able to receive up to $2,250 through this program. Years following the 
first year of implementation, each employee will be eligible to receive the max allowed per IRS ruling.  

Each employee will receive an initial deposit to their FSA of $500, which is 100% contributed by the 
Town. All full-time benefit eligible employees will also receive an annual Health Insurance Stipend of 
$875.00, for the plan year July 1st, 2022 to June 30th, 2023. If the employee elects to contribute this 
stipend to this FSA, the Town will match that deposit dollar for dollar. This will be a one-time election at 
the start of the plan year, and will be prorated on a monthly basis for all new employees at a rate of 
$72.92 for each full calendar month they are employed by the Town, and would be eligible for a dollar 
for dollar match by the Town equal to the employees initial deposit. 

Employees will be asked to either opt into or out of their contribution to the FSA, and shall be returned 
to the Finance Director by the date specified, or may forfeit their opportunity to opt in. The employee 
must opt into their contribution in order to receive the dollar for dollar match from the Town, this will 
be an non-taxable benefit to the employee for their contribution to the plan. If an employee opts out, 
then they will be able to retain the Health Insurance Stipend as a taxable benefit. 



Employees will be provided with a Debt Card from Group Dynamics to use towards eligible medical 
related expenses, if the card is lost, damaged, or stolen, the employee will be responsible for the cost of 
the replacement card.  

 

 Date: June 27th, 2022  Approved by: ______________________________________ 
       Delores Michelle Hannan, Select Board Chair 
   

       ______________________________________ 
       Mark Kelley, Select Board Vice-Chair 
 

       ______________________________________ 
       James Annis, Select Board Member   
 

       _______________________________________ 
       Eric Boucher, Select Board Member    
 

       _______________________________________ 
       Vacant 



 

   
 

Action Item 
i.    Act on Quitclaim Deed, Map 022, Lot 007 

 
Manager’s Comments: Action item 
The purpose of this deed is to release any interest the Town of Rockport may have acquired by 
reason of the following liens for unpaid sewer fees, recorded at the Knox County Registry of 
Deeds:  
Sewer Lien dated February 25, 2020, Book 5523 Page 73  
Sewer Lien dated August 10, 2020, Book 5590 Page 80  
Sewer Lien dated December 22, 2020, Book 5658 Page 182  
Sewer Lien dated March 23, 2021, Book 570 Page 213  
Sewer Lien dated June 28, 2021, Book 5750 Page 12 

 
The Town received payment in full for these liens, all sewer fees, and legal fees incurred by this 
matter.  
 
Suggested Motion: 
I move the Board approve the quitclaim deed, Map 022, Lot 007 
  

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair       
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair      
Eric Boucher      
Jim Annis      

 
 
Additional Comments: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Municipal 
QUITCLAIM DEED 

 
(Maine Statutory Short Form) 

 
 The Inhabitants of the Municipality of Rockport      , a body     
 
corporate and politic, located at Knox       County, 
 
Maine, for consideration paid, release to PATRICIA NOOK 
 
of  129 Russell Avenue                          Knox County, 
 Rockport, ME 04856 
the land in Rockport               Knox County,
  
Maine:  (here insert Description, and Encumbrances if any)    
  Being the Premises described as Map 022 Lot 007 of the Tax Maps of the 

Town of Rockport. 
 
  The purpose of this deed is to release any interest the Town  

of Rockport may have acquired by reason of the following liens for unpaid sewer 
fees, recorded at the Knox County Registry of Deeds: 

 
    Sewer Lien dated February 25, 2020, Book 5523 Page 73 
    Sewer Lien dated August 10, 2020, Book 5590 Page 80 
    Sewer Lien dated December 22, 2020, Book 5658 Page 182 
    Sewer Lien dated March 23, 2021, Book 570 Page 213 
    Sewer Lien dated June 28, 2021, Book 5750 Page 12 
    

 The said Inhabitants of the Municipality of Rockport 
 
have caused this instrument to be signed in its corporate name by Delores Michelle Hannan, Mark 
Kelley, Eric Boucher, and James Annis 
     , its duly authorized, this 
 
 27th. day of June, 2022.  
 

___________________________________________ 
Delores Michelle Hannan, Chair 
     
____________________________________________ 
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair    

  
___________________________________________ 
Eric Boucher 
 
___________________________________________ 
James Annis 
 

 
 
State of Maine 
 
County of Knox ,ss June 27, 2022. 
 
Then personally appeared the above named Delores Michelle Hannan, Mark Kelley, Eric Boucher, 
and James Annis of said body corporate and politic, and acknowledged the foregoing instrument to 
be their free act and deed in their said capacity and free act and deed of said body corporate and 
politic. 
 
      Before me, 
 
      _________________________________________ 
           Notary Public 
      Diane Hamilton__________________________ 
      Printed Name 



BOOK/PAGE—REGISTRY USE ONLY

MAINE REVENUE SERVICES
REAL ESTATE TRANSFER TAX 

DECLARATION
TITLE 36, M.R.S.A. SECTIONS §§4641-4641N

2. Municipality/Township

1. County

3. GRANTEE/
PURCHASER

6. TRANSFER TAX

3a) Name LAST or BUSINESS, FIRST, MI

5. PROPERTY

3b) SSN or Federal ID

3c) Name, LAST or BUSINESS, FIRST, MI 3d) SSN or Federal ID

3e) Mailing Address

3f ) City 3g) State 3h) Zip Code

4a) Name, LAST or BUSINESS, FIRST, MI 4b) SSN or Federal ID

4c) Name, LAST or BUSINESS, FIRST, MI 4d) SSN or Federal ID

4e) Mailing Address

4f ) City 4g) State 4h) Zip Code

4. GRANTOR/
SELLER

5b)   Type of property—Enter the code number that best 
describes the property being sold. (See instructions)—»

5d) Acreage

 .

5a)    Map          Block       Lot               Sub-Lot

5c) Physical Location

6a) Purchase Price (If the transfer is a gift, enter “0”)   6a

6b) Fair Market Value (enter a value only if you entered “0” in 6a) or
if 6a) was of nominal value)      6b

.00

.00
6c) Exemption  claim –           Check the box if either grantor or grantee is claiming exemption from transfer tax and explain.

7. DATE OF  TRANSFER  (MM-DD-YYYY)

        MONTH               DAY                       YEAR

8. WARNING TO BUYER–If the property is classified as Farmland, Open Space, Tree Growth, or Working Water-
front a substantial financial penalty could be triggered by development, subdivision, partition or change in use.

CLASSIFIED

Buyer(s) not required to withhold Maine 
income tax because:

Seller has qualified as a Maine resident

A waiver has been received from the State Tax Assessor
Consideration for the property is less than $50,000

11. OATH     Aware of penalties as set forth by Title 36 §4641-K, we hereby swear or affirm that we have each examined this return and to the best of 
our knowledge and belief, it is true, correct, and complete. Grantee(s) and Grantor(s) or their authorized agent(s) are required to sign below:

Grantee

Grantee 

Grantor

Grantor

Date

Date

Date

Date
12. PREPARER Name of Preparer

Mailing Address

Phone Number

E-Mail Address

*12RETTD*
00*12RETTD*

RETTD

9. SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES—Were there any special circumstances 
in the transfer which suggest that the price paid was either more or less 
than its fair market value? If yes, check the box and explain:

10. INCOME TAX WITHHELD–

Check any that apply:

Multiple parcels

No tax maps exist

Portion of parcel

http://www.maine.gov/revenue/propertytax/transfertax/transfertax.htm
Fax Number

Foreclosure Sale



 

   
 

 

Discussion Item 
a. Discuss Special Elections Dates 

 
Manager’s Comments:  
Linda will send this information to the Board. 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional Comments: (Time:           ) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

   
 

 

Adjourn 

Suggested Motion: 
I move the Board adjourn the meeting. 
 

NAME MOTION SECOND ABSTAIN YES NO Time 

Michelle Hannan, Chair       
Mark Kelley, Vice-Chair      
Eric Boucher      
Jim Annis      

 
 


	ADP7CFA.tmp
	Select Board Executive Session Minutes
	June 6, 2022 – 5:30 p.m. via ZOOM
	Adjourn

	ADP3B8A.tmp
	Sheet1


	Name: John Viehman
	Home Address: 26 Pleasant Street
	Work Address: 
	Mailing Address if different: same
	Phone Number  Home: 207-446-5873
	Work: 207-236-2299
	Email Address: john@johnviehman.cpom
	Committee you wish to serve on: Planning Board
	Why do you want to serve on this committee 1: The PB plays a vital, if not often misunderstood role in shaping the community.
	Why do you want to serve on this committee 2: While its authority begins and ends with the LUO, it's absolutely critical that it
	Why do you want to serve on this committee 3: proceeds with informed deliberation and a sense of history along with
	Why do you want to serve on this committee 4: an awareness of the comprehensive plan, which is a critical reference
	Why do you want to serve on this committee 5: when there are decisions required that may not be fully addressed in the LUO. 
	Do you have any background that would be helpful to this committee 1: I've served as a member of the Planning Board for the past nine years and have termed off
	Do you have any background that would be helpful to this committee 2: as of Jund 30, 2022. Given the steep learning curve to acquaint yourself with the LUO
	Do you have any background that would be helpful to this committee 3: and PB process in general, my experience would seem to be useful in
	Do you have any background that would be helpful to this committee 4: informing and/or mentoring "less seasoned" members. 
	Do you have any background that would be helpful to this committee 5: 
	Land Use philosophy if applicable 1: My personal philosophy is to work diligently to preserve the integrity
	Land Use philosophy if applicable 2: of the community, ever mindful of those features and/or assets that 
	Land Use philosophy if applicable 3: attracted me to live here in the first place. As a PB member,
	Land Use philosophy if applicable 4: my philosophy is predetermined by the LUO and comp plan.
	Are there objectives you wish to see accomplished 1: I feel strongly that paying attention to the process will invariably
	Are there objectives you wish to see accomplished 2: assure good decision-making. Therefore, I'm a consensus seeker
	Are there objectives you wish to see accomplished 3: by nature and feel that it's important for all voices to be heard,
	Are there objectives you wish to see accomplished 4: not just among the PB, but also from applicants and the public.
	Are you interested in serving on other committees 1: I've served on the Budget, Finance, Opera House, Technology, and Branding
	Are you interested in serving on other committees 2: Committees.I was a founding board member of the Rockport Library Fdtn.
	Interview comments 1: 
	Interview comments 2: 
	Interview comments 3: 
	Interview comments 4: 
	Interview comments 5: 
	Town of Rockport Use Only: 
	Mailing Address 2: 
	Print: 
	Clear Form: 
	County: KNOX
	Municipality/Township: ROCKPORT
	3a: NOOK, PATRICIA
	3b: 
	3c: 
	3d: 
	3e: 129 RUSSELL AVENUE
	3f: ROCKPORT
	3g: ME
	3h: 04856
	4a: TOWN OF ROCKPORT
	4b: 
	4c: 
	4d: 
	4e: 101 MAIN STREET
	4f: ROCKPORT
	4g: ME
	4h: 04856
	5b: 201
	5a Map: 022
	5a Block: 007
	5a Lot: 
	5a SubLot: 
	5c: 129 RUSSELL AVE
	NTM: 
	MP: 
	POP: 
	Acreage: 
	Acreage Decimal: 30
	6a: 
	6b: 415300
	6cb: Yes
	6c: TOWN IS RELEASING THEIR INTEREST FROM SEWER LIENS FILED. 
	7 MM-DD-YYYY: 06/27/2022
	8: 
	9Box: 
	9SS: TOWN IS RELEASING THEIR INTEREST IN THE PROPERTY FROM SEWER (WASTEWATER) LIENS FILED.
	10a: 
	10b: 
	10c: 
	10d: 
	Grantee: 
	Date: 
	Date_2: 
	Grantor: 
	Grantee_2: 
	Date_3: 
	Grantor_2: 
	Date_4: 
	Name of Preparer: Town of Rockport
	Phone Number: (207) 230-0180
	Mailing Address 1: 101 Main Street
	EMail Address: 
	Mailing Adress 2: Rockport, ME 04856
	Fax Number: 


